67, Institutional Area

S.R.BatLiBOI & CO. LLP e IR

Chartered Accountants Tel: +91 124 681 6000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We lLiave audited (he linancial statetments of AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of malerial accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive loss, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. -

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The Director report is not made available to us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. :

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books except (a) that the backup of the books of account and other
books and papers maintained in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in
India on daily basis as stated in Note 47 to the financial statements and (b) for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(¢c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2025 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are as stated
in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under
Rule 11(g);
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(h)

()

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been paid / provided by
the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the

Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations

under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that,
audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain access rights, as described
in Note 46 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting software where the
audit trail has been enabled. Additionally, the audit trail of relevant prior years has been preserved by
the company as per the statutory requirements for record retention, to the extent it was enabled and
recorded in those respective years, as stated in Note 46 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Vishal Sharma

Partner
Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 25096766BMIOHY 1916

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 12, 2025
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of account and
records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(D(a)A)

(B)
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(ii)(a)

(b)

(iii)(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets) or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals during the year by
management including inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure
of such verification by the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of 10% or more
noticed, in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

As disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of
current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the
financial statements, the quarterly returns filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with
the audited/unaudited books ol accounts of the Company. The Company does not have sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during the year
on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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H The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand
or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of cross flow fans, ODU fans are of the opinion that prima facie,
the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the same

(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight delay in a few cases. According to the information and explanations given to us and based
on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax,
sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which
have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on

clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. @\
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(xi)(a) No material fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been
filed in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under
audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable
to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities, Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank
of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on

clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company..

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not incurred
cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the

Company as and when they fall due. ;
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(xx)(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility
is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility
is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

N‘ Ww/”

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 25096766BMIOHY 1916

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 12, 2025
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Annexure ‘2’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of AmberPR
Technoplast India Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of AmberPR Technoplast India
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICALI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error o
may occur and not be detected. Also. proiections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with r
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to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Y=

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number: 096766

UDIN: 25096766BMIOHY 1916

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 12, 2025



AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Investment propertics
Intangible assets
Right-of-use asscts
Financial asscts

Other financial asscts
Income tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Iinancial asscts
T'rade recetvables
Cash and cash equivalents
Orther financial assets
Orher current asscts
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

liquity share capiral

Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
I“inancial liabilities
Borrowings
ILease labilities
Provisions
Deferred rax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
L.ease liabilities
T'rade payables
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(b) Toral outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilides
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilitics

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements

Notes

11
12

14

15

18
19
20

23
24
25

[§8]

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

- 5,.690.44
- 21.10

1,575.46 -
_ 407.67
- 1,514.28
26.76 44.08
29.38 13.01
- 42.58
1,631.60 7,733.16
- 1,554.38
1,683.97 2,430.30
- 1,453.44
2,655.55 118.79
57.30 126.84
4,396.82 5,683.75
6,028.42 13,416.91
3.26 3.26
2,928.39 2,920.31
2,931.65 2,923.57
- 3,163.58
13210 617.12
- 1313
18.63 183.28
150.73 3,977.11
330.09 1,280.66
86.89 164.94
- 636.86
2,143.70 3,448.43
378.26 743.18
7.10 203.65
- 38.51
2,946.04 6,516.23
3,096.77 10,493.35
6,028.42 13,416.91

As per our report of even date attached

[F'or S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

per Vishal Sharma
Partner
Membership Number : 096 /66

Ylacc Gurugranm
Date: 12 May 2025

/"{% rﬁ]’f{)}t‘ d on behalf of Board of Directors of
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Ylacc Gurugram
Date: 12 May 2025
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

itag For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Continuing operations
Income
Revenue from operations 26 2,051.65 -
Orther income 27 49.21 -
Total income 2,100.86 -
Expenses

Cost of raw marerials consumed
Purchase of traded goods 2,017.84 %
Changes n inventorics of intermediate products (including manufactured components) and

finished goods -
Fimployee benefits expense - -
Finance costs 28 10.42 -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 29 55.31 -
Other expenses 30 41.20 3.81
Total expense 2,124.77 3.81
(Loss) before tax from continuing operations (23.91) : (3.81)
Tax expense
Current tax 34 10.96 -
Deferred rax 34 (2.31) -
(Loss) for the year from continuing operations (32.56) (3.81)
Discontinued operations 44
Profit before tax for the year from discontinued operations 65.60 412,67
Tax expense of discontinued operations 23.76 118.63
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 41.90 294.05
Profit for the year 9.34 290.24
Other comprehensive (loss)
[tems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit obligations 38 (1.68) (11.16)
Income tax relating to these items 0.42 2.81
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (1.26) (8.35)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 8.08 281.89
Earning per equity share (Nominal value of equity share INR 10 each) 35
Basic and diluted from continuing operations (99.80) (11.67)
Basic and diluted from discontinued operations 128.43 901.38
Basic and diluted from continuing and discontinued operations 28.63 889.71
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants AmberPR Techumoplast India Private Limited
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013P'TC062098)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

A.  Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from discontinuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Bad debrts
Interest income
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (net)
Unrealised foreign exchange loss (net)
Gain on dclrucngﬂitinn of leascs

Finance costs

Working capital requirements:
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase) in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in non-financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets
Increase in trade pavables
(Dccrease)/inerease in provisions
Increase in financial liabilities
(Decrease) in non-financial liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Income tax refund (net)

Net cash flows from operating activities A

B.  Cash flows from investing activities

Purchasc of property, plant and equipment, investment

propertics, capital work in progress and intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Interest received on bank deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities B

C Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of short term borrowings (net)
Repayment of long-term br)rr()wiﬂgs
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
I'inance costs paid
Net cash flow used in financing activities C

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash cquivalent transfeceed pursuant to Business transfer agreement

|

of Slump sale (refer note 44)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) (refer note 12)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

(23.91) (3.81)
65.66 412.67
421.49 625.10

g 11.41

(3.02) (5.93)
24.28 1.68

- 16.84

(51.43) :

275.39 539.86
(1,945.20) 40.23
(76.13) (731.78)
(152.90) 284.73
(722.17) 4.68
1,593.80 776.69
(19.45) 8.48
939.02 62.83
(189.97) (18.56)
135.55 2,025.14
(27.33) 68.98
108.22 2,094.11
(1,017.54) (920.03)
133.78 26.45

. 4.26
(883.76) (889.32)
: 45.28
(275.95) (273.60)
(92.28) (108.72)
(36.15) (66.69)
(270.62) (508.48)
(675.00) (912.21)
(1,450.54) 292,58
1,453.44 1,160.86

(2.90)
= 1,453.44




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
a. Cash and cash equivalents includes:
Balances with banks:
- in current and cash credit accounts - 1,450.54
Cash in hand - 2.90
Cash and cash equivalents & 1,453.44
Summary of material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
Refler note 21 (L]) [ L]l'.!ngu i liabilities u:iaiug [toin [-ulum.ing activilies.
As per our report of even date attached
FFor S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP IFor and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Number : 30100315 /15300005
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A Equity share capital

No. of shares Amount
For the year ended 31 March 2025
At 1 April 2024 32,622 3.26
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
At 31 March 2025 32,622 3.26
For the year ended 31 March 2024
At 1 April 2023 32,622 3.26
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
At 31 March 2024 32,622 3.26

B Other equity
Reserves and surplus (refer note 16)
RIS : Securities Retained
Capital reserve . ; Total
premium earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2025
As at 1 April 2024 249.08 1,963.43 707.80 2,920.31
Profir for the year - - 9.34 9.34
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) - - (1.26) (1.26)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 249.08 1,963.43 715.88 2,928.39
For the year ended 31 March 2024
Balance as at 01 April 2023 249.08 1,963.43 425.91 2,638.42
Profit for the year - 290.24 290.24
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (net of tax) - - (8.35) (8.35)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 249.08 1,963.43 707.80 2,920.31
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of financial statements
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

i

2.2

Corporate information

The financial statements comprise financial statements of AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U63040PB2013PTC062098) (the Company) for the year ended 31 March 2025. The Company is
a deemed public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at C-1, Phase-II,
Focal Point, Rajpura Town, Rajpura, Rajpura, Patiala- 140401, Punjab, India.

The Company is principally engaged in the business of trading of versatle range of products i.e.,
Crossflow Fans, ODU fans, etc. and the Company have started business of leasing from 1 October
2024

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
12 May 2025.

Material accounting policies

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division IT of Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, (as amended from time to time) - (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1T), as applicable
to the SFS.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets
and liabilittes which have been measured at fair value:

e Derivative financial instruments, and

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding

financial instruments)

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs (INR

00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The Company has prepared the financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a

going concern.
Summary of material accounting policies

Current versus non-cutrent classification
The Company segregates assets and liabilities into current and non-current categories for presentation
in the balance sheet after considering its normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Ind AS
1, “Presentation of Financial Statements”. For this purpose, current assets and liabilities include the
current portion of non-current assets and liabilities respectively. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

always classified as non-current.
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified period up to twelve months as its operating

cycle.

Foreign curtrencies
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional

currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s at its functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the

Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional

currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the

Statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency ate translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (ie.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are

also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or
income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetaty liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company determines the transaction date for

each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet
date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or lability, or
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the.asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best

interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another

market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and

minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
® Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
® [Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basts, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.
e Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (notes 3, 39 and 40)

e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (refer notes 7, 11, 12, 13, 17, 21,
22,23,39 and 40)

Revenue from contract with customer




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is
the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before

transferring them to the customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue

from contracts with customers are provided in Note 3.

Salc of products
Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred

to the customer, generally on delivery of the products. The normal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon

delivery.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of
goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various schemes offered

by the Company as part of the contract

Variable consideration
If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of

consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that
a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the
sale of products provide customers with a right of return. The rights of return give rise to variable

consideration.

e Rights of return
The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the variable consideration given the large

number of contracts that have similar characteristics. The Company then applies the requirements
on constraining estimates of variable consideration in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transaction price. A refund liability is recognized for the
goods that are expected to be returned (Le., the amount not included in the transaction price). A
right of return asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales) is also recognised for the right

to recover the goods from a customer.

The disclosures of significant estimates and assumptions relating to the estimation of variable

consideration for returns is provided in Note 3.

Other revenue streams
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

€.

Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Interest income is included in “other income™ in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Interest income on fixed deposits is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the
amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest income is included under the head “other

income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Contract balances

Trade receivables
A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time 1s required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial

assets in section (n) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is eatlier) from
a customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract labilities are
recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the

related goods or services to the customer).

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return

Right of return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods expected to be returned by
customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in value. The Company updates the
measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any

additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received
(or receivable) from the customer. The Company’s refund liabilities arise from customers’ right of
return. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

Taxes




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PT C062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Tax expense comprises current tax expense and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Cutrent income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the country where the Company operates

and generates taxable income.

Curtent income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation
to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax
treatment by using either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method

predicts better resolution of the treatment.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and

deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused

tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable

that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the

time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does

not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PT C062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation

to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off cutrent tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority which intends either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets

are expected to be settled or recovered.
Goods and Services Tax (GST) paid on acquisition of assets or on Incurting expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Service Tax paid, except:
e When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item, as applicable

e  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority 1s included as part of

other current assets/ liabilities in the balance sheet.

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Plant and

equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for
long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on
their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation 1s calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Block of asset Useful life as per Companies Act, 2013 (in
years)
Building 30
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Plant and machinery 15

Computer 3

Furniture and fixture 10

Office equipment 5

Vehicles 8-10

Leasehold improvements Lower of Lease term or Useful life

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate,
depreciates certain items of plant and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from
the useful life prescribed in Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that
these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the

assets are likely to be used.

The Company reviews the estimated residual values and expected useful lives of assets at least annually.
In particular, the Company considers the impact of health, safety and environmental legislation in its

assessment of expected useful lives and estimated residual values.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is

derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are

reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

g. Investment properties
Investment property comprises completed property (land or a building or part of a building or both)
that is held, or to be held, to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Property held under a
lease is classified as investment property when it is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both.
More specifically, investment property includes land held for long-term capital appreciation as well as
land held for a currently undetermined future use. Investment property also includes (a) building owned
by the Company (or a right-of-use asset relating to a building held by the Company) and leased out
under operating lease(s), (b) a vacant building that is being held to be leased out under an operating
lease (or leases).
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss, if any. Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a
change in use.

The Company depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of
original purchase and property held under a lease which is classified as investment property over period

of lease. g
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Though the Company measures investment properties using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment properties are disclosed in the note 4A of the financial statements. Fair values are
determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer
applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Commuittee.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not
capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the

expenditure 1s incurred.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The
amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and

loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (L.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset 1s

derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets s, as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortisation method Internally generated
used ot acquired
Computer software Finite (3 years) | Amortised on a straight-line Acquired
basis over the period of the
asset
Technical Know how | Finite (15 years) | Amortised on a straight-line Acquired
basis over the period of the
asset
Customer Relationship | Finite (15 years) | Amortised on a straight-line Acquired

basis over the period of the

asset
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i

Leases
The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

e Right-of-use assets
The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:
e [.and 99 years

e Building 3 to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life

of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (j)

Impairment of non-financial assets.

e J.case Liabilities )

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
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the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if thete is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the

underlying asset.

e Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
building, machinery and cquipment (i.c., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of
low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense

on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company applies the low-value assets recognition exemption on a lease-by-lease basis. In
making this assessment, the Company also factors below key aspects:

e The assessment is conducted on an absolute basis and is independent of the size, nature,
or circumstances of the lessee.

e The assessment is based on the value of the asset when new, regardless of the asset's age
at the time of the lease.

e The lessee can benefit from the use of the underlying asset either independently or in
combination with other readily available resources, and the asset is not highly dependent
on or interrelated with other assets.

e If the asset is subleased ot expected to be subleased, the head lease does not qualify as

a lease of a low-value asset.

Company as a lessor

Leases m which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset is classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which

they are earned.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:
e Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories

to their present location and condition. Cost 1s determined on first in, first out basis.
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e [Finished goods and intermediate products (including manufactured components): cost includes
cost of direct materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the
normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined on first in, first out
basis.

e Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

e Stores and spares, consumables and packing materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is

determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs

of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

k. Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is

written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded

companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash
flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent
years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company

operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventoties, ate recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.
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The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is
an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such
indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal
is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the assct in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.
Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of

profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting 1s used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial
statements as per the requirements of Ind AS 37.

Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the

related service. If contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet
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date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the

extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be

made to a separately administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit

credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan asscts
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The
Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss:
e Service costs comprising cutrent service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments
and non-routine settlements; and

e Net interest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, 1s treated as short-term
employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount
that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The Company recognizes expected cost of short-term employee benefit as an expense, when an

employee renders the related service.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided
for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date.

Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not
deferred. The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not
have an unconditional right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

n. Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity-instrument of another entity.
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Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair

value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company
has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the

accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the
principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an
mstrument level. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair

value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through OCI are held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e.,

the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Financial assets at amortised cost
e Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of
cumulative gains and losses
e Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and
losses upon derecognition

e [inancial assets at Fair Value through profit and loss (FVIPL)
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Financial assets at amortised cost
A “financial assets’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount ot premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of
profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applics to trade receivables, security deposits and other receivables. For more

information on receivables, refer Note 7, 11 and 13.

Financial assets at FVTOCI
A ‘“financial assets’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent Solely Payments of Principal and Interest.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured mitially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI).
However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the Profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss

previously recognised in OCI is reclassified [rom the equity to Profit and loss.

The Company’s debt instruments at fair value through OCI includes investments in quoted perpetual

debt instruments included under financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind
AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies are
classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through

OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.
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Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets included within the FVIPL category are measured at fair value with all changes

recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:
® The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially

all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing mvolvernent that tkes the forn of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that

the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the aming of the default (a ifeame ECL).
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F'or trade receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the
Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the

economic environment,
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition, measurement and presentation
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss, loans and borrowings or as payables as appropriate.

All financial Labilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, other financial labilities, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial

mnstruments.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and

financial labilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incutred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS
109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss only if the
criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTIPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ losses are not
subsequently transferred to P&IL. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss
within equity. All other changes in fair value of such hability are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilitics at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)
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This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the

statement of profit and loss.
This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 17 and 21.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability 1s discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After
mitial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if
there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be mfrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations.
Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company
either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
‘The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or

losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

Original classification | Revised classification | Accounting treatment

Amortised cost F¥NTPL Fair value 1s measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortized cost
and fair value 1s recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss

EVIPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new gross carrying amount. EIR is calculated
based on the new gross carrying amount
Amortised cost FVIOCI Fair value is measured at reclassification date.
Difference between previous amortised cost
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and fair value is recognised in OCI. No
change in EIR due to reclassification

FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new amortised cost carrylng amount.
However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is
adjusted against fair value. Consequently, the
asset is measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost

FYIPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its
new carrying amount. No other adjustment is
required

FVTOCI ['VTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair value.
Cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
i OCI is reclassified to Statement of Profit

and Loss at the reclassification date

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there 1s a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known

amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash

management.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an

adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The
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2.3

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares)
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in

resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented
separately as ‘profit before tax from discontinued operations,’ tax expense of discontinued operations,’
and ‘profit after tax from discontinued operations,’ in the statement of profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in note 44. All other notes to the financial statements mainly

include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned.
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

New and amended standards

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. The Company
has applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods

beginning on or after April 01, 2024.

(1) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide
notification dated August 12, 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts
covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104
Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts, regardless of the type of
entities that issue them as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features; a few scope exceptions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model,

supplemented by:

- A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
- A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 does not have material impact on the Company’s separate financial
statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in the nature of insurance contracts covered

under Ind AS 117.




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

2.4

(i) Amendments to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024,
which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain

or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 01, 2024 and must
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial
application of Ind AS 116.

The amendments do not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

The Company has not early adopted any standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued

but 1s not yet effective.

Standards notified but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date
of 1ssuance of the Company’s standalone financial statements are disclosed below. The Company will
adopt this new and amended standard, when it become effective:

Lack of exchangeability Amendments to Ind AS 21

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified amendments to Ind AS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates to specify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and
how it should determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments also
require disclosure of information that enables users of its financial statements to understand how the
currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to affect, the entity’s

financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2025. When

applying the amendments, an entity cannot restate compatative information.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying

amount of assets or liabilities affected in future petiods.
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PT C062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

Judgements
[n the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as
lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods

covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The
Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is teasonably certain whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exetcise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date,
the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is
within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the
amount and timing of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of goods include a right of return that give rise to vatiable consideration.
In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

The Company determined that the expected value method is the appropriate method to use in
estimating the variable consideration for the sale of goods with rights of return, given the large number

of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers
whether the amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the
estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on its historical experience, business
forecast and the current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration

will be resolved within a short time frame.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An acruarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All

assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. [n determining the appropriate discount rate
for plans operated, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country. Those mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity
increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the country.

Ifurther details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 38.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
See Note 39 and 40 for further disclosures.

Revenue recognition - Estimating variable consideration for returns

The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of
goods with rights of return. The Company developed a statistical model for forecasting sales returns.
The model used the historical return data of each product to come up with expected return percentages.
These percentages are applied to determine the expected value of the variable consideration. Any
significant changes in experience as compared to historical return pattern will impact the expected

return percentages estimated by the Company.

The Company updates its assessment of expected returns quarterly and the refund liabilities are adjusted
accordingly. Estimates of expected returns are sensitive to changes in circumstances and the Company’s

00”'7 -,
a < x\bo/

g =P Yragram ) B

0 & \\*%)



AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

past experience regarding returns entitlements may not be representative of customers’ actual returns
in the future.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms

of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are

updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company’s historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 40.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at
arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company 1s not yet committed
to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested.
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected

future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market

interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates.
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
5. Capital work-in-progress
Plant and machmery under progress - 21.10
- 21.10
Notes:
(i) Movement in capital work-in-progress:
Particulars Amount
Capital work-in-progress as at 01 April 2023 -
Add: additions during the year 21.10
ILess: capitalisation during the year .
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2024 21.10
Add: additions during the year 199.17
Assets transferred pursuant to Business transfer agreement of Slump sale (refer note 44) (220.27)
Capital work-in-progress as at 31 March 2025 -
Ageing schedule of capital work-in-progress
_ Amount in CWIP for a period of
31 March 2025 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
year
Plant and machinery under progress - - -
Amount in CWIP for a period of
31 March 2024 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
year
Plant and machinery under progress 21.10 - - 21.10

(i1) Capital work n progress (CWIP) as at 31 March 2025: INR Nil lakhs (31 March 2024: INR 21.10 lakhs) comprises expenditure on sctup of DG and plant automation

project under development.

(iii) ‘T'here are no projects that are temporarily suspended. Further, there are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan.

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

6. Intangible assets

Cost Software  Technical know- Customer Total intangible
how Relationship assets
Balance as at 01 April 2023 16.83 195.00 283.00 494.83
Additions 22.40 = - 22.40
Disposals - B, B, _
Balance as at 31 March 2024 39.23 195.00 283.00 517.23
Additions 5.04 - - 5.04
Disposals - - = -
Assets transferred pursuant to Business transfer agreement (44.27) (195.00) (283.00) (522.27)
of Slump sale (refer note 44)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 - - - -
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 01 April 2023 0.39 26.00 37.74 64.13
Charge for the year 13.51 13.02 18.90 45.43
Disposals = - - B}
Balance as at 31 March 2024 13.90 39.02 56.64 109.56
Charge for the year 732 6.52 9.45 2329
Disposals/ Adjustment 0.02 g 0.02
Assets transferred pursuant to Business transfer agreement (21.24) (45.54) (66.09) (132.87)
of Slump sale (refer note 44)
Balance as at 31 March 2025 = = = =
Net block as at 31 March 2024 25.33 155.98 226.36 407.67

Net block as at 31 March 2025

Intangible assets as at 31 March 2025: Nil Lakhs (31 March 2024: 407.67 Lakhs) comprises of technical knowhow, customer relationship

and software.

On transition to Ind AS (Le. 1 April 2020), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all Intangible assets measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of Intangible assets.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
7 Other financial assets (non-current unsecured, considered good)
Secunty deposits (also refer note 32) 26.76 H.08
26.76 44.08
Notes:
(1) Reter note 39 - Far value disclosures tor disclosure of fur value in eespect of tinancial assets measured aramornsed cost and note 40 - Financial nsk management for assessment of expected credin losses.
8 Income tax assets (net)
Income s assets (nict) 29.38 13.01
29.38 13.01
9  Other non-current assets (unsecured, considered good)
Capiral advances 14.25
Prepad expenses - 28.33
- 42.58
10 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, unless otherwice ttated)
Ranw marerials
- hand - 986.08
- in rransit - 34
Intermedinte produess (incliding manufierured components) . 3263
Finished goods - 481.23
- 1,554.38
During, the year ended 31 March 2025, INR Nl lakh (31 March 2024: INR Nl Likh) was recognised as an expense for mventaries carried ar ner realisable value,
11 Trade receivables
Trade recewvables 112434 2,232.69
Receivables from related parties (refer note 32) 359.63 197.61
1,683.97 2,430.30
Break-up for security details:
Trade receivables
- Unseenred, considered good 1,683.97 243030
- Credit impared = =
1,683.97 2,430.30
Impail Allowance (all ¢ for bad and doubtful debts)
Less: allowance tor credit impaired receivables - =
1,683.97 2,430.30
Notes:
(i) Reter note 40 - Fin | risk management for assessment of expected credir losses.
(ii) No trade or orher receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company ather severally or jontly wath any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member other than those disclosed in note 32
(m) For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 32,
(iv) Trade recervables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
(v) Ageing schedule of trade receivables:
31 March 2025 Qutstanding from the due date of payment Total
Particulars Less than 6 |6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Not due
months
Undisputed rrade receivables — considered good 80.17 1,603.80 - 1,683.97
Undisputed rrade receivables = w = = 3
Disputed trade receivables — considered good - - - R
Dispured trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - - E
Total 80.17 1,603.80 - - - - 1,683.97
31 March 2024 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Particulars Less than 6 |6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years.
Not due
months
Undisputed trade rec idered good 2,170.32 256.16 100 2,62 - - 2.430.30
Undisputed trade recervables — credit impaired - - - - -
Disputed trade receivables — considered good - -
Disputed trade recevables — credit impaired - & - : 5 -
Total 2,170.52 256.16 1.00 2.62 - - 2,430.30
12 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:
-1n current and cash credit accounts - 145054
Cash in hand 290
- 1,453.44
13 Other financial assets (current) (unsecured, considered good)
Sccurity deposirs - 2,50
Other recoverable amounts 55.77 116.29
Consideration receivable for slump sale (refer note 32 and note 44) 1,867.74 -
Receivable from sale of Property, plant and equipment (refer note 32) 732,04 -
2,655.55 118.79
Reter note 39 - Far value disclosures for disclosure of Far value m respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost and note 40 - Financral nisk management for assessment of expected eredit losses.
14 Other current assets (unsecured, considered good)
Advances to suppliers 0.44 42.00
Balances wath statutory authonties 56.80 70.50
Prepaid expenses - 9.08
Other Recevable - 5.26
57.30 126.84

(This space bas
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
16 Other equity
Securities premium
Balance ar the begmning and at the end of the year 1,963.43 1,963.43
Capital Reserve
Balince at the begmming and ar the end of the year 249.08 249.08
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 707.80 125.91
\dd: Profit for the year 9.34 200.24

Add: Other comprehensive income:

Remeasurement of detined benetit obligations (net of tax) (1.26) (8.33)
Balance at the end of the year 715.88 707.80
2,928.39 2,920.31

Nature and purpose of other equity

Securities premium

Securities premium represents premum recerved on issue of shares. The sccunines premium s bang utibised inaccordance with the provisions ot the Companies Act, 2013,
I I I 5 I

Capital Reserve
Capital reserve represents the excess of ner denntiable assers acquired over the consideranon pad, ansing from acquisinon of the busimess on a slump sale basis.

Retained earnings
Surplus n the starement of profit and loss are the profirs thar the Company has earned il dare, less any transfers ro general reserve, dividends or other distnbutions pind ro sharcholders. Retuned carnings include re-measurement

loss / (gain) on defined benefir plans, net of taxes thar will nor be reclassitied 1o Starement of Profir and Loss.

17 Non-current borrowings [refer note (i) below] As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Secured
Term loans
from banks 3,127.39
Vehicle loan
tfrom banks = 36.19
- _ 3,163.58
18 Lease liabilities As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non-current maturitics of lease Inbilines 132.10 617.12
132.10 617.12
Current matunities of lease habilines 86.89 164.94
86.89 164.94
lor disclosures related 1o lease lubilines refer note 32 and refer Note 37 leases
19 Provisions (non-current)
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuty 6.27
Compensated absences - 6.806
- 13.13

For disclosures related o provision for employee benefits, refer note 38- Emplayee benefit obligations.

(This space bas been intentionally left blunk)
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

20 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

21

Deferred tax liability arising on account of :
Property, plant and equipment impact of difference benween rax deprecunon and
deprecnon/amornsanon charged for the financul repornng

Deferred tax asset arising on account of :
Expenses allowable n Income rax on payment basis and deposinon of Statutory dues
Provision for doubttul debrs and advances
Fing
Net deferred tax liabilities

cul assets carmied at amortised cost

Movement in deferred tax (Assets)/liabilities

2892 239.34
8.11 73.37
287

2.18 -
18.63 183.28

Particulars 01 April 2024  Recognised in other  Transferred under Recognised in 31 March 2025
X comprehensive slump sale statement of profit
income and loss
Liabilities
Prope V. plant and equipment impact of t|l_|h:l'LnL'|: I)Cl'\‘\'LILn tax depreciation and 23054 . (@504 2342 2892
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial reporting
Assets
Expenses wible i Income tax on payment basis and deposinon of Sturory dues (73.37) (0.42) 68.37 (2.6T) (8.11)
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (2.87) 2.87 y
Financial assers carnied at amornsed cost - = (2.18) (2.18)
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 183.28 (0.42) (185.67) 21.44 18.63
Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Particulars 01 April 2023 Recognised in other Recognised in 31 March 2024
prel iv of profit
income and loss
Liabilities
Property, plant and cquipment impact of Llif'll-n-nm- between tax depreciation 18158 7496 25054
depreciation/amortisation charged for the financial reporting
Assets
Expenses allowable in Income tax on payment basis and deposition of Statutory dues (15.89) (2.81) (54.67) (13.37)
Provision tor doubtful debts and advances (2.87) - - (287)
Business loss and unabsorbed deprecution (7.19) - 7.19 -
Others (8.88) - 888 -
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 149.75 (2.81) 36.36 183.28
Current borrowings
From related parties (refer note 32) (refer note (b) below) = 330.09
IFrom others (refer note (b) below) 330,09 =
Secured
Current maturities of non-current borrowings:
Term loan [also refer note 17(1)]
- from banks 938835
Vehicle loan [also refer note 170)]
- from banks - 11.72
330.09 1,280.66
Notes:
a. The Company has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets and quarterly returns or statements of current asscts filed by the Company wath banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.
b. The borrowing is from a related party of the erstwhile director (ceased to be a director with effect from 31 March 2024) and is unsecured and interest free.
. The Company has been sancnoned working capital imats in excess of INR five crores n aggregate from banks durning the year, refer note 40(B)(a) for financing arrangements.
d. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from fi ing activities
Non-current Lease liabilities Current
borrowings borrowings*®
(including current Lol
maturities)
As at 01 April 2023 4,387.75 890.79 284.81 5,563.35
Cash tlows:
Proceeds from borrowings - - 45.28 45.28
Repayment of horrowings (273.60) (108.72) - (382.32)
As at 31 March 2024 4,114.16 782.06 330.09 5,226.30
Cash flows:
Proceeds from borrowings - - - &
Repayment of borrowings (275.95) (92.28) - (368.23)
Non cash adjustments
Lease lability recognised during the year (ner) - 470.79) (470.79)
(3,838.21) - - (3.838.21)
218.99 330.09 549.08

'lwﬂﬂﬁ%lmm Business transfer agreement of Slump sale {refer note 44)
ApAC3 Mardi 202
Ty 74
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

22

24

Trade payables

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

- toral outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note (1) for detals of dues to micro and small enrerprises) - 636.86
- total ourstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,143.70 3,448.43
2,143.70 4,085.29
I'rade payables 10.33 3,729.54
I'rade payables to related parties (reter nore 32) 2,133.37
2,143.70 4,085.29
Notes:
(i) Disclosures pursuant to section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Ihe principal amount and the interest due thereon remaming unpad to any supplier as ar the end of each accounnng year
Prinaipal amount due to micro and small enterprises 603.39
Interest due on above 3347
The amount of mnterest pad by the buyer in terms of secnon 16 of the MSMED Acr 2006 along with the amounts of the payment -
madc to the suppher beyond the appointed day during each accounnng year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appoinred -
day during the year) bur withour adding the interest specificd under the MSMED Act 2006
Ihe amonnt ot interest accrued and remaming unpaid at the end ot cach accounnng year 3347
The amount of turther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unnl such dare when the interest du above =
are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under secrion 23 of the MSMED
Act 2006
(ii) Ageing schiedule of trade payables™
31 March 2025 8] ling from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Toral outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterpnises - - - - - -
“Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 323.00 1,820.70 = 2,143.70
small enterpnses
Total 323.00 1,820.70 - - - 2,143.70
31 March 2024 Outstanding from the due date of payment Total
Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than J years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterpnses and small enterprises 393.79 243.07 - - - 630.80
“Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterpnises and 2,193.31 1,238.74 14.69 1.69 - 344843
small enterprises
Total 2,587.10 1,481.81 14.69 1.69 - 4,085.29
Note:
* The Company does not have any disputed ducs.
(iii) Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
“I'rade payables are non-interest beanng and are generally on rerms of 15 to 90 days.
For terms and condinons with related parnies, refer to note 32
For explanations on the Company’s credit nsk management processes, refer to Note 0.
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Other financial liabilities (Current)
Payables for capital goods - 577.16
Fxpens yable 3.75 64.76
Employee related payables (also reter note 32) 69.88
Interest accrued bur not due on borrowings - 31.38
Payable to related party tor expense incurred on behalt of the company (refer nore 32) 37451 -
378.26 743.18
As at As at

Other current liabilities
Advance from customers (contract liabiliies)
Payable to statutory authonties

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits®
Gratuity
Compensated absences

*For disclosures related to provision for employee benetirs, refer note 38- Employec benetit obligations.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

337 4.29
3.73 199.36
7.10 203.65
2 2090
- 17.61
- 38.51
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AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

26

7

28

29

30

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contract with customers (refer note 43)

Sale of products
Facility Rental (refer note 37 (II))

Other income

Interest Income on:

IFinancial assets carried at amortised cost
Other non-operating income:

Gain on de-recognition of leases

Finance costs

Interest on

- lease liabilitics (refer note 37)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on Investment property (refer note 4A)

Other expenses

Legal and professional fees [refer note (1) below]
Rent (refer note 37)
Rates and taxes

i) Payments to the auditor:

As auditor:
Audit fee
Limited review

In other capacity:
Reimbursement of expenses

Total

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

2,018.22
33.43

2,051.65

0.69

48,52

49.21

10.42

10.42

55.31

55.31

For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

3.60 3.81
3154 -
6.26 -
41.20 3.81
2.585 3.00
0.45 0.45
0.60 0.36
3.60 3.81

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in INR Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

31 Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account not provided for - 13.76
(net of advances) - acquisition of property, plant and equipment and investment property

32 Related party disclosures
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures’, names of the related parties, related party
relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where control exits and with whom transactions have

taken place during reported periods are:

A. Relationship with related parties

L Holding company Amber Enterprises India Limited
II.  Entities over which significant Sidwal Refrigeration Industries Private Limited
influence is exercised by the Pee Aar Automotive India Private Limited (till 31 March 2024)
company /key management Pravartaka Tooling Services Private Limited
personnel (either individually or  IL JIN Electronics (India) Private Limited
with others) NRV DesignX Private Limtied

III. Key management personnel (KMP)

a.  Mr. Pankajj Russtagi
(Managing Director) (tdll 31 March 2024)

b.  Mr. Sanjay Kumar Arora
(Director with effect from 08 Feburary 2024)

¢.  Mr. Ojaswin Singh
(Additional Director with effect from 22 January 2025)

d.  Mr. Sudhir Goyal
(Additional Director with effect from 22 January 2025)
IV. Related parties of Key management personnel

a.  Ms. Rashmi Rustagi
(Wife of Mr. Pankajj Russtagi, Managing Director) (till 31 March 2024)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR lakh unless stated otherwise)

32 Related party disclosures (continued)

The following transactions were carricd out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the year ended 31 March 2025

. Entities over which Relative of Key
s : Holding e . Key ent
S No. Particulars significant influence gement
Company . . personnel
is exercised personnel
(A) |Transactions made during the year:
1 [Sale of products
Amber Enterprses Indi Limited 2,773.11 -
Pravartaka Tooling Services Pravare Limited - 207
2 |Purchases of raw material
Amber Enrerprises India Limired 1,947.14
3 |Purchase of Property, plant and equipment
Amber Enterpases India Limired 161.36
NRV DesignX Private Limned - 10.33
4 |Sale of Property, plant and equipment
Amber Enterp ndia Limited 62184
5 |Facility Rental
Amber Enterprises Indu Limited 3343 - -
6 |Rent paid
Amber Enterpnses India Limited 39.15 - =
7 [Reimbursement of Expenses
Amber Enterpnses India Limited 37451
Pravartaka Tooling Services P 0.70 - -
8 |Consideration receivable for Business transfer agreement of slump sale
Amber Enterprises India Limated 1,867.74 - -
9 |Cancellation of corporate guarantees pursuant to slump sale
Amber Enterprises India Limited 10,400.00 - - -
10 |Legal and Professional Expenses
Amber Enterprises India Limited (business support) 55.00 - - -
. Enuities over which Relative of Key
Sl. No. Particulars Holding significant infl Key = z
Company 3 5 personnel
is exercised personnel
(B) |Balances at year end
1 |Trade payables
Amber Enterprises India Limited 2,132.67 -
Pravartaka Tooling Services Privare Linited 0.70
2 |Trade receivables
Amber Enterprises India Limited 539.63 B
3 |Receivable from sale of Property, plant and equipment
Amber Enterpnises India Limited 732.04
4 |Security Deposit paid
Amber Enterprises India Limited 1040 - g
5 |Consideration receivable for Business transfer agreement of slump sale
Amber Enterpnses India Limited 1,867.74
6 |Payable to related party for expense incurred on behalf of the company 37451
Amber Enterpases India Limited

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The transactions of sale and purchases with related parties are made on rerms equivalent to those prevailing in arm’s length transactio
trading actwvitics are gencrally unsccured. Interest is charged as per terms of the contracr with the related parties which is at arm’s length. The ner outstanding balanc
generally in cash.

he ourstanding balances ar the year end of

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables other than disclosed above
For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recarded any impairment of reccivables relating to amounts owed by related partics (31 March 2024 INR Nil lakh).

(This space has been intentionally &ft blank)




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited
(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR lakh unless stated otherwise)

32 Related party disclosures (continued)

The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business for the year ended 31 March 2024

S No. Particulars

Holding Company

Entities over which
significant influence
is exercised

Key management
personnel

Relative of Key
management
personnel

(A) |Transactions made during the year:

1 |Sale of products
Amber Enterprises India Limited

Pravartaka looling Services Provate Limited
2 |Purchases of raw material

Amber Enterprises India Limited
Pravartaka Tooling Scrvices Private Limited

3 |Repair and maintenance charges paid
IL JIN Electronics (India) Pyt Lrd

4 |Legal and professional fees
Amber Enterprises India Limited

5 |Sale of Property, plant and equipment
Amber Lnterprises India Limited

6 |Remuneration paid to KMP's
Employee benefit expenses”

AName of KMP
Mr. Pankajj Russtag

7 |Expenses incurred on behalf of Company
Mr. Pankajj Russtag

8 |Interest free unsecured loan received
Rashami Rustagi

Pee Aur Automotive Technologies Privare Limited

Sidwal Refrigeration Industries Private Limited

Pee Aar Automotive Technologies Private Limited

4,687.27

509.34

198.95

25.38

138
1.54
8.39

87.37
0.71

0.16

203.07

203.07

9.53

45.28

(This space hay been intentionally left blank)




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amount in INR lakh unless stated otherwise)

32 Related party disclosures (continued)

Entities over which Riv:managemeni Relative of Key
SI. No|| Particulars Holding Company| significant influence b & management

" . personnel s
is exercised pemnnnc[

(B) [Balances at year end

1 [Trade payables
Amber Enterprises India Limited 348.05
Pee Aar Automotive Technologies Private Limited - 7.70 - @

2 |Trade receivables
Amber Enterprises India Limited 193.11 - - -
Pee Aar Automotive Technologies Private Limited - 1.23
Sidwal Refrigeration Industries Private Limited - 1.46
Pravartaka Tooling Scrvices Private Limited # 1.81

3 |Other financial assets
Pee Aar Automotive Technologies Private Limited - 116.29

4 |Post-employment benefits of KMP's
Mz, Pankajj Russtagi = & 36.27

5 |Payable to KMP's
Mr. Pankajj Russtag = 8 8.91 _

6 |Unsecured Loans
Ms. Rashmi Rustagi - - - 330.09
7 |Corporate guarantee taken*®
Amber Enterprises India Limited 10,400,00

8 |Lease Liabilities (Non Current)
Amber Enterprises India Limited 423.64 -

9 [Lease Liabilities (Current)
Amber Enterprises India Limited 65.60 -

10 [Security Deposit paid
Pee Aar Automotive Technologies Private Limited - 3.00 - -
Amber Enterprises India Limited 5.37 -

*Corporate guarantee taken by the Company from the Holding Company against working capital borrowings and term loans. The original sanctioned limits of working capital
borrowings and term loans sanctioned by the banks have been disclosed above.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

T'he transactions of sale and purchases with related partics are made on terms equivalent to those prevailing in arm’s length transactions. The outstanding balances at the year
end of trading activities are generally unsceured. Interest is charged as per terms of the contract with the related parties which is at arm’s length. The net outstanding balances
are settled generally in cash.

There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables other than disclosed above.

Ior the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March 2024: INR Nil lakh).

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

(CIN: U28199PB2013PTC062098)

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
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33 Assets pledged/mortgaged/hypothecated as security

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current
Inventories - 1,554.38
‘I'rade receivables 1,683.97 2,430.30
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,453.44
Other financial assets 2,655.55 118.79
Ovther current assets 57.30 126.84
Total current assets pledged/hypothecated as security (refer note 17(1)) 4,396.82 5,683.75
Non-current
Property, plant and equipment - 5,690.44
Investment property (refer note 17(1)) 1,575.46 =
Total assets pledged/mortgaged,/hypothecated as security 5,972.28 11,374.19

34 Tax expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 are:

Profit or loss section
Current income tax:
Current income tax charge

Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year:
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit obligations

Deferred tax charged to OCI

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024

Accounting profit before tax

At India’s statutory income tax rate*

Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Orthers

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

* Domestic tax rate applicable to the Company has been computed as follows
Base tax rate

Surcharge (%o of tax)

Cess ("o of rax)

Applicable rate

35 Earnings per share (EPS)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
10.96 82.27
10.96 82.27
21.44 36.36

32.40 118.63
0.42 2.81
0.42 2.81
41.74 408.87
10.51 102.90
19.55 15.49
2.34 0.24
32.40 118.63
22% 22%
10% 10%
4% 4%
25.17% 25.17%

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of
Iiquity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Lquity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the potential dilutive

Equity shares into Equity shares.
quity quit)

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS compurations:

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company:

Continuing operations (INR in lakhs) (a)

Discontinued operation (INR in lakhs) (b)

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (INR in lakhs) (¢ = a + b)

Weighted average number of shares used in computing earnings per share
Earnings per share- after tax

Basic and diluted from continuing operations (in INR)

(Thix space has been intentionally left blantk)

(32.56)
41.90
9.34

32,622
(99.80)

128.43
28.63

(3.81)
294.05
290.24

32,622
(11.67)

901.38
889.71
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36 Ratio Analysis and its elements
Sl. |Ratio Measurement Numerator Denominator 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 Change Remarks
No. unit
Ratio Ratio
1 |Current ratio Times Current assets Current liabilites 1.49 0.87 71.10" o[ Refer note (i)
2 |Debt-equity ratio Times Total debt Sharcholder's equity 0.19 1.79 (89.52" ) [Refer note (i)
|Non-current borrowings +
current borrowings+Lease
labilites|
3 |Debt service Times Earnings available for debt |Debt serviee [finance 0.61 1.60 (61.87" ) [Refer note (1)
coverage ratio service cost as per Profit &
[Net profit after taxes + Loss Account +
Non-cash operating lease payments +
cxpenses like deprecaton | principal repayments
and other amortizations + (other than pre-
Interest + Other payments, if any)|
adjustments like loss on sale
of fixed assets, etc.|
4 |Return on equity Percentage Net Profits after taxes — Average 0.32% 10.43% % (96.94" ) | Refer note (1)
ratio Preference Dividend (if any) | Sharcholder’s Equity
5 |Inventory turnover Times Revenue from operations | Average inventories 10.84 10.17 6.51"v|Refer note (1)
ratio ((Opening + Closing
balance) / 2)
6 |Trade receivables Tines Revenue from operations Average trade 4.09 4.92 (16.81" ) | Refer note (1)
turnover ratio receivables
[(Opening balance +
Closing balance) / 2|
7 |Trade payables Times Total purchases Average trade 1.97 222 (11.27" 0} | Refer note (1)
turnover ratio payables [(Opening
balance + Closing,
balance) / 2]
8 |Net capital Times Revenue from operations Working capital 5.81 (14.53)]  (139.97" )| Refer note (1)
turnover ratio |Current assets -
Current liabilities]
9 [Net profit ratio Percentage Net profit after taxes Revenue from 0.11% 2.40% (95.38"0) | Refer note (1)
operations
10 [Return on capital Percentage Profit before interest and Capital employed 9.06" 13.28% (31.76" ) | Refer note (1)
employed taxes [Tangible net worth
+ Total debt +
Deferred tax liability]
11 |Return on Percentage | Interest from bank deposits Weighted time - 13.46"|  (100.00%0) | Refer note (1)

investment

average bank
deposits

Notes:

(i) During the current year, the Company had entered into a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) with its holding company and accordingly transferred all movable
and immovable properties and assumed liabilities, except land and building to the holding company through slump sale. Therefore, current year figures are not

comparable with previous year figures.
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37 Leases

I

I

Company as a lessee

The Company has leases for plant and machinery, office premises, factory lands and related facilines. With the excepuon of short-term leases, cach
lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a rght-of-use asset and a lease liability. The Company classifies its right-of-usc assets in a consistent
manner to its property, plant and equipment.

Liach lease generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublet the asset to another party, the right-of-
use asset can only be used by the Company. For leases over factory premises, the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair
and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease.

The Company also has certain leases of machinery with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of office equipment with low value. The

Company applies the “short-term lease” and ‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Building Land Total
As at 01 April 2023 883.00 457.24 1,340.24
Additions - 328.93 328.93
Depreciation expense (143.97) (10.92) (154.89)
As at31 March 2024 ] 739.03 775.25 1,514.28
Additions T = 2.61 2,61
Deletions (431.68) - (431.68)
Depreciation expense (71.80) (5.61) (77.41)
‘T'ransfer to investment property (refer note 4(v)) (235.55) (772.25) (1,007.80)
As at 31 March 2025 - - -

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

As at 1 April 782.07 890.79
Additons - -
Accretion of interest 36.15 66.69
Payments (128.43) (175.42)
Deletion (470.80) #
As at 31 March 218.99 782.07
Current 86.89 164.95
Non-current 132.10 617.12

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities 1s disclosed in Note 40
The effeetive interest rate for lease liabilitics ranges from 8.25% p.a. to 9.00% p.a. (31 March 2024: 8.25% p.a. to 9.00%0 p.a.) with maturity between
FY 2025 - 2027 (31 March 2024: FY 2024 - 2037)

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Depreciation expense of right-of-usc asscts 77.41 154.89
Interest expense on lease habilities 36.15 66.69
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 35.59 2.04
Total 149.14 223.62

The company had total cash outflows for leases of INR 164.02 lakh in 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: INR 177.46 lakh).

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide
flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the Company’s business nceds. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be excrcised (see Note 2).

Company as a lessor
The Company has leased out factory land and building in India under non-cancellable operating leases. These leases have terms of berween of
maximum of 11 months. The total lease rentals recognised as income during the year is INR 33.43 lakh (31 March 2024: INR Nil).

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Within one year 82.05 3
After one year but not more than five years R J
More than five years 3 2

Total 82.05 -

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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38
A

A

Employee benefit obligations
Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has defined contribution plans. Contribunons are made to provident fund n Indu for employees as per regubinons. The contmburions are made to

regstered provident fund administered by the government. The obliganon of the Company 1 hmated o the amount contmbuted and it has no further contracrual

nor any constructive obliganon. The expense recogmsed dunng the year towards detined contnbunon plan s as under:

31 March 2024

Particul 31 March 2025

Employer's conmbunon to Provident Fund 10.88 30.32

Emplover's contmbution to Employvee Stare Insurance 162 346

Expense recognised during the year 12.50 33.78

Gratuity

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current Non-current Current Non-current

Giratuiry - - 20.90 0.27

Total - - 20.90 6.27

Disclosure of gratuity

(1) The Company has a defined benefit graruiry plan (funded). The Company’s defined benefit gratuity plan 1s a final salary pln for employees, which requires

i)

(iii)

(iv)

contnbutions to be made to a

service or part thereof in excess
1972 Under the act, employee who has completed fiv
salary at renrement/ teemination/ res

length of service
demanded by the

carmied out by an independent actuary.

cparately administered fund. Gratuity (being admimistered by a Trust)
of 6 months and is payable on retrement/termnation/resignation. The
years of service Is entitled to specific benefir. The
nation. The Gratity plan for the Company is a de
urer are depostted to a Gratuity Trust Fund established to provide gratuity benefits, The Trust has taken an insurance pol
contributions are transferred to the nsurer. The Company makes provision of such grarity asset/liability in the books of account on the basis of actuanal val

s computed

ry, tor cve

of benetits provided depends on e e

ed benefit scheme where annual contributions

v completed year of

ratuity plan 1s governed by the Payment of Gratiry Acr,

t's

, whereby these

wahion

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Amount recognised in the of profit and loss is as under:
Description 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current ce cost 3.22 9.22
Interest cost 143 226
Net impact on profit (before tax) 4.65) 1148
\ctuarial loss recognised during the year 1.68 1116
Amount recognised in total comprehensive income 6.33 22.64
Change in the present value of obligation:
Description 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 39.34 30.11
Current service cost 32 9.22
cost 143 2.26
s paid (21.33) (13.41)
Acruarial gain/(loss) 1.68 116
Transterred pursuant to Business transter agreement of Slump sale (refer nore 44) (24.34) -
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year = 39.34)
The Company expects to contribute INR NIL lakh (31 March 2024 2 INR 7.46 lakh) ro gratuity fund in the nexr financial year.
Movement in the plan assets recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Description 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 12.17
Conmiburtions - 12,17
Transterred pursuant to Business transfer agreement of Slump sale (refer note ) (12.17) -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - 12.17]
“100% of fund 1s managed by Insurance Company.
Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets:
Description 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Present value of funded obligation as at the end of the year 39.34
IFair value of plan assets as at the end of the year funded status 12.17,
Unfunded/funded net liability recognized in balance sheet - 27.17
R ement loss in other comprehensive income
Description 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Acruarial loss from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial loss from change in financial assumption 045 0.56
Actuarial loss from experience adjus 1.23 10,60
Total actuarial loss 1.68 1116
Actuarial assumptions
Description 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Discount rate 7.00% 1.25%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 5.00% 5.00%0
Retirement age 58 Years 58 years
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
Description 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Impact of change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year - 39.34
- Impact due to inerease of 1 % - (1.58)
- Impact due to decrease of 1 %o 184
Impact of change in salary increase
Present value of obliganon at the end of the year - 39.34
- Impact due to in¢ - 1.86
- Impacr due to dec - (1.62)

‘The sensitivity analy

above have been determined based on a method that extrapolares the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reas

gniticant 3

nable changes

sumption, keeping all other

31 March 2024

20.90
2.76|
15.68
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39 Fair value disclosures

i) Fair values hierarchy
I'mancial assets and financial habilities measured at fair value in the financial starement are divided into three Levels of a faur value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the

observability of significant mputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) m active markets for financial mstruments.

Level 2: The farr value of financial mstruments that are not traded in an active market 1s determined using valuanon techniques which maximise the use of observable marker data
rely as hittle as possible on enuty speaific esumates.

Level 3: If onc or more of the significant mputs 1s not based on observable market data, the nstrument s icluded in level 3.

(ii) Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost
Fasr value of instruments measured at amortised cost for which fair value is disclosed 15 as follows:

Parti 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
articulars Level . - -

Carrying value|  Fairvalue [ Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Other financial asscts Level 3 2,682.31 2,686.05 162.87 162.87
Trade recervables Level 3 1,683.97 1,683.97 243030 2,430.30
Cash and cash equivalents Level 3 - - L4334+ 1,433.44
Total financial assets - 4,366.28 4,370.02 4,046.61 4,046.61
Financial liabilities
Borrowings Level 3 330,09 330,09 44424 44424
I 'rade payables Level 3 2,143.70 2,143.70 +,085.29 +085.29
Other financml habilines Level 3 378.20 378.26 743.18 T43.18
‘Total financial liabilities 2,852.05 2,852.05 9,272.71 9,272.71

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other current financial assets, trade pavables, short term borrowings and other current financial habilines
ts and habihtes 1s included at the amount at

approximate their carrving amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these mstruments. The far value of the financial as
which the snstrument could be exchanged mn a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or hquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to @stimate the fur values:

such as mterest rates, specific country nsk factors and ndwidual creditworthiness of the

() Long-term fixed-rate recewables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters
customer. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

u) The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings, loans, other financial liabilities are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s
pan] 5 5 b 2
and 31 March 2024 was assessed to be msignificant.

borrowng rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance nisk as at 31 March 202

(m) All the other long term borrowing faciliies availed by the Company are varable rate facilities which are subject to changes in underlying interest rte indices. Further, the credit
spread on these facilities are subject to change with changes in Company's credinworthiness. The management believes that the current rate of interest on these loans are in close
approximation from market rates applicable to the Company. Therefore, the management estimates that the fair value of these borrowings are approximate to their respective
carrying values.

(1v) There have been no transfer between three levels defined above during the year ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024
40  Financial risk management

Financial instruments by category

~

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost
Financial assets
Other financial assets - 5 2,682.31 - - 162.87
“I'rade recewvables - - 1,683.97 - - 243030
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 1,453.4+4
Total - - 4,366.28 - - 4,046.61
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 330.09 - - 444424
‘I'rade pavables - - 2,143.70 - - 4,085.29
Lease habilites - - 218.99 - - 782.06
Other financial liabilities = - 378.26 - - 743.18
Total - - 3,071.04 - - 10,054.77

ii) Risk Management
activities expose to market nsk, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Company's board of dircctors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
management framework. This note explains the sources of nsk which the entity 15 exposed to and how the entity manages the nisk and the related impact in the

The Company”

Company's ris
financial statements.

Management
Bank deposits, diversification of asset base, credit limits and collateral.

Risk Exposure arising from [Measurement
Credit nisk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, | Ageing analysis

financal assets measured at amorused cost

Rolling cash flow Availability of commutted credit lines and borrowing faciliues

forecasts

Ligquidity nisk Borrowings and other liabilities

Recogmsed financial assets and labilities not |Cash flow forecasting Forward contract/hedging, 1f required

denominated in Indian rupee (INR)

Market risk - foreign
exchange
Negotiation of terms that reflect the marker factors

Market risk - interest rate |Long-term and short-term borrowings at Sensinvity analysis

variable rates

The Company’s nsk management is carried out by a central treasury department (of the Company) under policies approved by the board of directors. The board of directors provides
principles for overll sk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.
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A)

—

b)

(

()

B)

a)

Credit risk
Credit risk 1s the sk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Company. The Company is exposed to this ask for various financial mstruments, for example by
placing deposits, ete. The Company’s masimum exposure to credit ask 1s imited to the careving amount of following types of financial

granting loans and recevables to customers,
assets.

- cash and cash equivalents,

- trade recevables

Credit risk management
The Company assesses and manages credut nisk based on internal credit ratng system, contnuously monitoning defaults of customers and other counterparties, denufied erther
Internal credit ratng 1s performed for cach class of financial instruments with different

individually or by the company, and incorporates this information into its eredit nisk controls
charactenstics. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, mputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

A: Low
B: Medium
C: High

Assets under credit risk —

Credit rating Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
A: Low Other financial assets 2,682.31 162.87
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,453.44
T'rade recewvables 1,683.97 243030
B3: Medium ‘I'rade recevables
C: [ligh Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit nisk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts i different banks.

Trade receirables
The Company closely monitors the eredit-worthiness of the debtors through internal systems that are configured to define credut limuts of customers, thereby, imiting the credit nisk

to pre-calculated amounts. The Company assesses increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts receivable that become past due.

Other financial assels measured al amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes security deposits and others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoning the recoverability
of such amounts continuously, while at the same tme internal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined houts.

Expected credit losses
Trude receirables

The Company recogmses lifetime expected credit losses on trade recenvables using a simplified approach and uses historical nformation to arrive at loss percentage relevant to each
category of trade recevables.
Ageing 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Gross carrying | Expected loss Expected | Gross carrying | Expected loss | Expected credit
amount - trade rate® credit loss* | amount - trade rate* loss*
receivables receivables
Current but not due 80.17 .00 | - 2,170.52 O.00% -
0-180 days 1,603.80 0.00%% - 256.16 D00
181-365 days - 0.00%% - 1.0 0.00%
36(:-73“(]“.\'3 - .00 - 262 0.00%
731-1095 days - 000" - - 0.00%)
Total 1,683.97 - 2,430.30 -

*Amount is below the rounding off norms of the Company

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision from beginning to end of reporting penod:

Reconciliation of loss allowance T.rade
receivables

Loss allowance on 1 April 2023 11.41

(Less): Changes in loss allowances due to bad debts (11.41)

Loss allowance on 31 March 2024 =

Add (Less): Changes in loss allowances due to bad debts -

Loss allowance on 31 March 2025 ]

Other financial assets measired af amortised cost

The Company provides for expected credit losses on loans and advances by assessing individual financial nstruments for expectation of any credit losses. Since this category includes
loans and recemvables of varied natures and purpose, there is no trend that the company can draws to apply consistently to enure population For such financial assets, the Company's
policy 1s to provides for 12 month expected credit losses upon initial recognition and provides for lifetime expected credit losses upon significant increase in credit nsk. The
Company does not have any expected loss based impairment recognised on such assets considering therr low credit nisk nature, though incurred loss provisions are disclosed under
each sub-category of such financial assets.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable secunities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of commutted credit
facilitics to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the business, the Company mamntains flexibility in funding by mantaming availability under committed facilities.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The ('nmpany takes into account the
liquidity of the market in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management policy nvolves projecting cash flows in major currencies and considenng the

level of hiquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet iquidity ratios against internal and external regulatory, zats and mamntaining debt financing plans.
08'; pr Tec/ﬁ
S O
<
Financing arran =
The Company, S0 ollowing undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting penod: o f w0
Particulars, ) =/ < | = ] 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
- Expiring Qq(ﬁnt year (C-NF::(L it and other facilities) \ =) - +,764.54
- Expirin L\I"l ¢ pear (])El\lﬂ ns) , e / i x
B L) N iy 3 hoad s 364 B4

7 h X
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b)

&
a)

0]

b)

ii)

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Company’s financial habilities into relevant maturity based on their contracrual matunines for all non-denvative financial habilines
The amounts disclosed i the able are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrving balances as the impact of discounntng 1s not

sigmificant.
31 March 2025 On demand Less than 1 1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 Total

year years
Non-derivative
Borrowngs 330.09 E - - 2 33009
‘I'ade payable 2,143.70 - - 2,143.70
Lease habilities - 90,12 159.77, E = 249.89
Other financial habilines - 378.26 378.26
Total 330.09] 2,612.08 159.77 - - 3,101.94

|

31 March 2024 On demand Less than 1 1-3 year 3-5 year More than 5 Total

year years
Non-derivative
Borrowmgs 330,09 950157 190843 L1477 107 44 44424
Trade payable - 4,185.29 - - +4,(185.29
Lease habiliues - 171.26 492.59 168.02 225.58 1,057 .45
Other financial habilines - 743.18 = 743.18
Total 330.09 5,950.29 2,401.02 1,315.73 333.02 10,330.16

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency nisk is the nisk that the far value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primanly to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense 1s denominated in a foreign currency).

Unhedged foreign currency risk exposure in foreign currency:

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
usD UsD
Financal assets - -
Iinancial liabilities - (674.65)
Net exposure to foreign currency risk (liabilities) - (674.65)

Sensitivity
The sensinvity of profit or loss before tax and equity to changes in the exchange rates anises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial snstruments.

31 March 2025| 31 March 2024

Particulars

USD sensitivity

INR/USD- increase by 2.43%0 (previous year : 2.1000)* - (14.17)
INR/LUSD- decrease by 2.43%% (previous vear : 2.10%0)* - 1417

* Holding all other rariables constant

Interest rate risk

Liabilities

The Company’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow nsk exposures on long-term financing. At 31 March 2025, the Company is exposed to changes in market interest rates
through bank borrowings at varable interest rtes. The Company’s investments in fixed deposits, all pay fixed interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure
Below 1s the overall exposure of the Company to interest rate risk:

Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024

- 406625

Varable rate borrowing
47.91

I'ixed rate borrowing

Total borrowings - 4,114.16

Sensitirity
Below is the sensitvity of profit or loss and equity changes in interest rates.

Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024

Interest sensitivity*

Interest rates — increase by 100 bps (previous year: 100 bps)* .66

(40.66)

Interest rates — mcrease by 100 bps (previous vear: 106 bps)*

* Holding all ather variables constant

Assets
The Company’s fixed deposits are carnied at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to iterest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the

carrying amount nor the furure cash flows will fluctuate because of w change i market mierest rutes.
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Capital management
Iror the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital include
Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximuse the sharcholder value.

wssued equity capital, secunities premum and all other equity reserves attnbutable to the equity holders of the

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes i economic condinons and the requirements of the financal covenants. To mamtam or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders orissue new shares. The Company momtors capital using a debt
cquity rauo, which s total borrowing divided by tonal equiry.

The Company includes within total borrowing, interest beaning loans, borrowings and lease labilines.

Debr equity ratio

Particulars 31 March 2025| 31 March 2024
Total borrowings 349.08 3,226.30
Total equity 2,931.65 2.923.57
Debt to equity ratio 0.19 179

In order to achieve this overall objectve, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached o the interest-bearing
loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permut the bank to immedsately call loans and borrowngs. There

made in the objectives, policies or processes for

have been no breaches m the financial covenants of any interest-beanmyg loans and borrowmg i the current period. No changes we
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024,

Segment information

The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business acnvities carried on by the Company. Chairman and Managing Director have been idenufied as the
Chief Operating Deaision Makers (CODMY) and evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of the varous performance indicators of the
The Company operates i one reportable business

Company as a single unit. Therefore, there are no separate reportable business segments as per Ind AS 108 - Operating Scgments.

segment e, manufacturing of consumer durable products and s primanly operating i India and hence, considered as single geographical segment (refer note 43 for revenue by

total revenuc)

geography). Majority of the revenue is derived from one geography and two external customers (who individually constitutes more than 10%0 of the Company’
amounting to INR 2,215.59 lakh (31 March 2024: INR 3,207.82 lakh from one external customer who individually constitutes more than 1076 of the Company's total revenue).

42A Corporate social responsibility expenses

In accordance with Scetion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 as amended from tme to ume, every company
having net worth of INR 300 crore or more, or turnover of INR LU0 crore or more, or net profit of INR 5 crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year shall
constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Commuttee of the Board consisting of three or more directors, out of which at least one director shall be an mdependent director. The
Board of every company referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 1335 of the Compantes Act 2013, shall ensure that the company spends, in every bmancial year, at least two per cent
of the average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial years. The provision of aforesaid section are not applicable to the Company for the
vear ended 31 March 2025,
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43 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (“Ind AS 1157), establishes a framework for determining whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised and requires disclosures about the nature, amount, tming and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows ansing from customer contracts. Under Ind
AS 115, revenue is recogmsed through a 5-step approach:
(1) Idenntying the contract with a customer
(1) Identifying the performance obligations
(1) Determining the transaction price
(1) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
(v) Recognising revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.
(a) Disaggregation of revenue
Sct out below 1s the disaggregation of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers:
Sale of products For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from operations - continuing operations Sale of products Sale of products
Revenue from customers (transterred at pont ot ime) 2,018.22 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,018.22 -
Revenue by geography
India 2,018.22 =
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,018.22 -
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 2,018.22 -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,018.22 -
(b) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
Ind AS 115 also requires disclosure of ‘revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period” and
‘revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satsfied (or partially satsfied) in previous periods. Same has been disclosed as below:
Description For the year | For the year
ended ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period 4.29 1.97
Total 4.29 1.97
(c) Contract balances
Description As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Non-current Current Non-current Current
Trade receivables - 1,683.97 - 2,430.30
Contract liabilities related to sale of goods
Advance from customers - 3.37 4.29
"I'rade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days.
Contract liabilitics consist of short-term advances received from customer to supply goods.
(d) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with Contract price
Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Contract price 2,034.68 -
Less: Sales return (16.45) -
Less: Discount, rebates, credits etc, 7 =
Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 2,018.22 -
(e) Performance obligations

The performance obligation is satisficd upon delivery of the product and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from delivery.
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44 Assers transferred pursuant to Business transfer agreement of Slump sale and discontiued operations

(1) The Reconstruction Committee of the Board of Directors, in their meeting on 7 September 2024, approved the slump sale of its partal business
("underraking™) on a going concern basis for a lump sum sale consideration of INR 1,867.74 lakh to Amber Enterprises India Limired. \ business

transter agreement was entered on 30 Seprember 2024, with an effective date for the transfer set for | October 2024,

Details of net assets transferred under Slump Sale are as follows:

Particulars Amounts
Assets transferred under slump sale (A)
Property, plant and equipment +,904.07
Capital work-in-progress 220.27
Other intangible assets 389.40
Other financial asscts 73.50
Other assets 250.77
Invenrories 1,630.52
‘T'rade receivables 2,691.52
Cash and cash equivalents 2.99
Total Assets (A) 10,162.95
Liabilities transferred under slump sale (B)
Borrowings 3,838.21
Provisions 33.88
Deferred rax liabilities (net) 185.67
Trade payable 3.535.47
Other financial liabilities ) 695.41
Other current liabilities 6.57
Total Liabilities (B) 8,295.21
Net identifiable assets transferred under slump sale as on October 1, 2024 (C)=(A)-(B) 1,867.74
Sale consideration (D) 1,867.74

Surplus/(deficit) (E)=(C-D) -

The undertaking which have been transferred pursuant to Business transfer agreement of Slump sale is considered as discontinued operations as per "Ind
AS 105 - Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. The Results of discontinued operations presented as below:

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Income
Revenue from operations 6,371.08 12,092.63
Other income 6.39 20.96
Total income 6,377.47 12,113.59
Expenses
Cost of taw materials consumed 4,122.26 7,794.91
Purchase of traded goods 32276 171.58
Changes in inventories of intermediate products (including manufacrured components) and finished (392.75) (309.34)
goc s
Employee benefits expense 391.31 856.35
Finance costs 264,97 539.86
Depreciation and amortisation expense 366.20 625.10
Other expenses 1,237.06 2,022.45
Total expense 6,311.81 11,700.92
Profit before tax from discontinued operations 65.66 412.67
Tax expense

Current tax - 82.27

Deferred rax charge 23.76 36.36
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 41.90 294.05

The net cash flows incurred by discontinued business are as follows:

Operating
Investung

Financing

Net cash (outflow)/inflow

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(384.07) 2,094.11
(469.70) (889.32)
(596.77) (912.21)
(1,450.54) 292.58
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Additional regulatory information

(1) The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property. under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Aet, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(11) The Company does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period other than as
disclosed in note 17(1).

(1v) The Board of Directors of the Company, at their meeting held on 21 October 2024 and Amber Enterprises [ndia Limited, at their meeting held on 22 October 2024
has approved the scheme of amalgamation among Amber Enterprises India Limited and AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited. The Board of Directors of the
Company and Amber Enterprises India Limited has further approved the said scheme to revise the appointed date of the scheme to 1 April 2025 from the earlicr
approved date of 1 April 2024 in their meeting dated 12 May 2025 and 17 May 2025 respectively. The Company s in the process of filing the scheme with NCLT for

required approvals. The effect of the scheme would be recognised on receipt of requisite approvals.
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall-

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantce, sccurity or the like to or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) direetly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, sceurity or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

(vir) The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(viii) The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

(ix) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled at the database level insofar as it relates o
Microsoft 12365 accounting software. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software where the audit trail has
been enabled. Additionally, the audit trail of prior years has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to the extent it was
cnabled and recorded in the respective years.

[n pursuant to the recent amendment i Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014, the Company is maintaining proper books of account and other relevant books and papers
n electronic mode which is accessible in India at all times. However, the books of account maintained in clectronic mode is currently not being backed-up on daily basis
on a server physically located in India for a period not more than 28 days due to design issue Microsoft 12365.

For and on behalf of Board of Dircctors of
AmberPR Technoplast India Private Limited

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Nurm
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